

# Plug-in Car Grant Vehicle Application Form and Guidance Notes

Version 7.2

March 2021

The Department for Transport (DfT) has actively considered the needs of blind and partially sighted people in accessing this document. The text will be made available in full on the Department's website. The text may be freely downloaded and translated by individuals or organisations for conversion into other accessible formats. If you have other needs in this regard please contact DfT.

Department for Transport Great Minster House 33 Horseferry Road London SW1P 4DR Telephone 0300 330 3000 General enquiries <u>https://forms.dft.gov.uk</u> Website <u>www.gov.uk/dft</u>

# OGL

Crown copyright 2021

Copyright in the typographical arrangement rests with the Crown.

You may re-use this information (not including logos or third-party material) free of charge in any format or medium, under the terms of the Open Government Licence v3.0. To view this licence visit <u>http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-governmentlicence/version/3</u> or write to the Information Policy Team, The National Archives, Kew, London TW9 4DU, or e-mail: <u>psi@nationalarchives.gov.uk</u>.

Where we have identified any third-party copyright information you will need to obtain permission from the copyright holders concerned.

# Contents

Background	4
How the Scheme Operates	5
Application process	6
Flow chart to summarise the plug-in car grant application and assessment	
process:	8
Guidance for completing the application form	9
1. Applicant contact details	9
2. Summary of vehicle details	9
3. Meeting the eligibility criteria	10
Annex A: PICG Application cover sheet	16
Annex B: Additional Information	22
Annex C: Guidelines to meet the plug-in car grant warranty criterion	24
Annex D: Guidelines for preparing battery degradation evidence	

# Background

Government is going further and faster to decarbonise transport by phasing out the sale of new petrol and diesel cars and vans by 2030, and, from 2035, all new cars and vans must be zero emissions at the tailpipe. Between 2030 and 2035, any new cars and vans sold that emit from the tailpipe must have significant zero emission capability.

The plug-in car grant (PICG) was launched in 2011 to help bridge the upfront price difference between ultra low emission cars and their internal combustion engine equivalents. Since the PICG scheme began in 2011, over 300,000 claims have been made and the total value of the grants issued is over £1.2bn.

From 21 October 2018, cars that were eligible for the grant had CO<sub>2</sub> emissions of less than 50g/km and a zero-emission range of at least 70 miles.

From 12 March 2020, cars that were eligible for the grant had an RRP below £50,000

From 18 March 2021, cars eligible for the grant have an RRP below £35,000 (see full price cap definition below)

We regularly review grant levels. Both the level of grant and the criteria for each category is liable to change at OZEV's discretion.

# How the Scheme Operates

The PICG can only be claimed by new cars at first registration. Preregistration conversions are eligible to be submitted for the scheme. Post-registration conversions, however, are not.

## **Eligible Vehicles**

To be eligible for the grant, the completed cars (chassis and bodywork) need to meet the criteria set out in this document. These criteria are intended to provide a minimum level of assurance to consumers. We reserve the right to alter these criteria. If, for example, during the course of the PICG new regulations or standards may come into force, these eligibility criteria will be harmonised with those regulations or standards.

Details of the relationship between government and the applicant submitting a vehicle for acceptance onto the scheme will be provided in an agreement to that applicant when one of its vehicles has been considered eligible. The vehicle will be formally approved for the scheme when the agreement is returned signed.

If an applicant is applying for more than one variant of the same vehicle to become eligible for the scheme, provided that the different variants are covered by the same type approval and warranty terms, a single reference number and agreement will be used to cover the different variants.

New variants of a vehicle that is already eligible for the grant are not automatically eligible. A variant of a vehicle that requires new type approval documentation will need to be approved separately. Manufacturers should apply for these new variants to be approved under the grant scheme. If you are unsure whether a new variant of a vehicle needs to be approved, please contact <u>olev.enquiries@olev.gov.uk</u>.

## Definition of price for application of the cap

To be eligible for the PICG, eligible cars must be priced below £35,000 RRP. The definition of price includes:

- VAT, including VAT reclaimable by a business
- vehicle manufacturer or dealer's mandatory extras including delivery charges or administration fees
- the battery cost (including where the battery is leased)
- any non-standard option fitted by the manufacturer or dealer affecting the capacity of the battery, drive train configuration or maximum net power.

and excludes:

- any non-standard option fitted by the manufacturer or dealer which does not affect the capacity of the battery, drivetrain configuration or maximum net power.
- modifications such as 'police packs', ambulance/fire engine modifications
- modifications for disabled users
- warranty/insurance and service packages etc
- first registration fee and cost of first licence
- discounts (including rebates)

Where a vehicle model has a price range which straddles the cap only those variants/trim levels priced below the cap will be eligible for the grant. Variants or trim levels of eligible vehicles which are priced above the price cap are not eligible for the grant.

## Applying for the grant

Once a vehicle has been formally approved for the scheme, the manufacturer and its selected dealerships will be given access to an online portal, through which they can register claims for eligible vehicles. Claims will be paid to the manufacturer on a monthly basis. Further details of this process will be made available to the applicant once a vehicle has been formally approved for the scheme.

From the customer's point of view, the PICG is deducted from the price of the vehicle at the point of sale by the dealership, so there is no paperwork for them to complete in order to benefit from the grant, except a survey. Both private consumers and businesses can benefit from the PICG when purchasing a qualifying ultra-low emission vehicle and registering it to a UK address<sup>1</sup>.

# **Application process**

Those wishing to apply for a vehicle to become eligible for the scheme should complete the application cover sheet and additional information form (Annex A & B), attach the required supporting evidence and submit to <u>olev.enquiries@olev.gov.uk</u> for assessment by the PICG panel. Supporting evidence should be in English.

Detailed guidance on how to complete the application form is given below. Any questions regarding the application process should be sent to <u>olev.enquiries@olev.gov.uk</u>

#### The assessment process

We will aim to process applications as quickly as possible. Applications will be processed as soon as they are received and we would hope to make a decision within two months from the time all documents are received. This depends on the complexity of the application and whether further technical information is required. We recommend applicants engage as early as possible with OZEV to allow time for the application to be processed.

The assessment process is as follows:

- Applicant submits completed application form and supporting evidence to <u>olev.enquiries@olev.gov.uk</u>. OZEV confirms the application has been received and is complete.
- 2. The Vehicle Certification Agency (VCA) confirms the validity of type approval certificates presented as evidence.
- 3. Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) officials consider the warranty documentation provided. OZEV consider the recommendations and either:
  - Decides that the application has passed,
  - Decides that the application has failed, or
  - · Requests further information from the applicant, or
  - Requests advice from independent technical experts before coming to a decision. This is likely to be on evidence relating to battery or fuel cell degradation (3.7) and/or crash safety (3.8), but may be on another aspect of the application.
- 4. If the vehicle passes the assessment process, an offer letter will be sent to the applicant setting out the terms of acceptance.
- 5. If the vehicle fails, a letter will be sent to the applicant explaining the reasons why and recommending steps which the vehicle manufacturer might wish to take before resubmitting an application.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Where registered is defined as being registered in accordance with section 21 of the Vehicle Excise and Registration Act 1994 and licensed for use on UK roads, or registered according to the terms of the Diplomatic Privileges Act 1964, and licensed for use on UK roads.

6. If the vehicle passes, OZEV will upload its make and model onto the OZEV site.

# Costs

Cases where independent technical expertise is needed to assess applications are likely to be rare. In such cases, however, there may be a cost to the applicant. Independent technical advice is most likely to be required for the following criteria:

- Battery or fuel cell degradation (3.7) and
- Crash safety (3.8) under route b) with crash testing for other internationally recognised consumer information programmes or regulatory standards that offer a comparable or better level of safety stringency as EC WVTA.

## **Review of decision**

Applicants have a right to seek a review of the assessment panel's decision. Further detail would be provided to the applicant in the letter advising that the application had been unsuccessful.

If significant further work is required to validate the submitted evidence, the applicant may be asked to meet those costs. OZEV will let the applicant know if this applies, in order to enable the applicant to decide whether they wish to meet the costs or to withdraw the application.

Applicants are encouraged to contact OZEV with any specific questions.

# Flow chart to summarise the plug-in car grant application and assessment process:



# Guidance for completing the application form

The application form can be found at Annex A. This form acts as a cover sheet and must be accompanied with supporting evidence in English. Accepted evidence is outlined below.

If the requested evidence is inapplicable to the vehicle concerned, the applicant should state why the vehicle benefits from an exemption.

# 1. Applicant contact details

- 1.1 **Plug-in car grant application number** This is a unique identification number provided by OZEV in response to a request for the PICG application form. It should be used in all correspondence. If an applicant is applying for more than one variant of the same vehicle to become eligible for the scheme, provided that the different variants are covered by the same type approval and warranty terms, a single reference number and agreement will be used to cover the different variants.
- 1.2 **Name of company applying** Name of company submitting the application for assessment.
- 1.3 Applicant address Applicant's postal address.
- 1.4 **Point of contact for application process** Named individual with contact email, phone number and address.

# 2. Summary of vehicle details

- 2.1 Vehicle model
- 2.2 **Model variants seeking approval** list all the variants of the model for which approval is being sought.
- 2.3 Energy storage capacity and chemistry (or principle of operation) detail the chemistry, in the case of a battery, or the principle of operation of any other powertrain energy storage device and its capacity (in kWh or other appropriate units)
- 2.4 **Internal combustion engine capacity (if applicable)** For PHEVs state the engine nominal capacity (cm3) and fuel (e.g. petrol, diesel)
- 2.5 **Fuel cell capacity (if applicable)** the on-board fuel storage capacity of a fuel cell vehicle (FCEV) (in kg, in the case of hydrogen, or an appropriate unit for any other fuel) and power of the fuel cell (kW)
- 2.6 **Maximum speed (mph)** as will be publicly specified by the applicant (if maximum speed is limited please specify the limited maximum)
- 2.7 Number of seating positions
- 2.8 Vehicle segment e.g. lower medium or supermini
- 2.9 **Recommended retail price** If this has not been finalised at the point of application, please give an approximate value. The value stated should be inclusive of VAT, before deduction of the PICG.

# 3. Meeting the eligibility criteria

# 3.1 Vehicle Type

The vehicle must be within the M1 category, as defined under EU Directive (EC) 2007/46/EC.

# Accepted Evidence:

To show that the vehicle is homologated in the M1 category:

- A copy of the EC Whole Vehicle Type Approval certificate; OR,
- A copy of the EC Small Series Type Approval certificate; OR,
- A copy of the UK National Small Series Type Approval certificate; OR,
- A copy of the UK Individual Vehicle Approval (IVA) certificate.

# Multi-stage builds

For the purposes of the PICG any multi-stage built M1 vehicle will need to have been approved as a completed vehicle (that comprises both chassis and bodywork); the Accepted evidence listed above must cover the vehicle in its finished condition. An approval for a vehicle that has not been completed will not be accepted. This is to ensure vehicles driven off the forecourt when bought by the public meet the PICG criteria.

Manufacturers will need to consult the Vehicle Certification Agency (VCA) to obtain completed vehicle approval.

http://www.dft.gov.uk/vca/vehicletype/type-approval-for-go.asp

http://www.dft.gov.uk/vca//vehicletype/ecwvta-framework-directive.asp

To make an enquiry about applying for Type Approval, e-mail enquiries@vca.gov.uk or call +44 (0)117 952 4164

# 3.2 CO<sub>2</sub> emissions

As explained in the background section, to qualify for the scheme, the car's tailpipe CO<sub>2</sub> emissions in combination with its zero emission range (requirement 3.3) must be such that the vehicle has:

 $\ensuremath{\text{CO}_2}$  emissions of less than 50g/km and a zero emission range of at least 70 miles

# Accepted evidence

To verify the vehicle's tailpipe CO<sub>2</sub> emissions:

- A copy of the Communication Form issued by the authority approving the vehicle to UN-ECE Regulation 101, showing CO<sub>2</sub> emissions of 50g/km or less; OR,
- A copy of the approval certificate that shows compliance with Regulation (EC) No 715/2007, showing CO<sub>2</sub> emissions of 50g/km or less.

# 3.3 Zero emission range

As explained in requirement 3.2, the vehicle must have a zero-emission range such that when considered together with its  $CO_2$  emissions it falls into one of the three categories specified above.

## Accepted evidence

To verify the vehicle's zero emission range:

• A copy of the Communication Form issued by the authority approving the vehicle to UN-ECE Regulation 101;

OR,

• The Type Approval Certificate (including Addendum) issued by the authority approving the vehicle to Regulation (EC) No 715/2007.

# 3.4 Maximum speed

To allow safe use on trunk roads and motorways, cars must be able to travel at a speed of at least 60 mph (96 km/h).

Different manufacturers use different processes for assessing maximum speed; this, alongside other environmental factors introduces considerable variation in real world performance.

In the event of credible concerns appearing about the vehicle actually achieving a maximum speed of 60 mph (96 km/h) in service, then the applicant will need to pay for the vehicle to be assessed in accordance with the technical requirements of UN ECE Regulation 68 to address those concerns. The Secretary of State reserves the right to impose this requirement on all applications throughout the lifetime of the scheme.

## Accepted evidence

 A copy of the publicly available specification of the vehicle stating that the vehicle has a top speed of 60 mph (96 km/h) or greater;

OR,

• A signed statement of vehicle maximum speed 60 mph (96 km/h) or greater), stating that this value will be made publicly available;

OR,

 A copy of an approval certificate for UN-ECE Regulation 68; OR.

• A test report from an appropriately equipped and qualified technical centre that shows the vehicle has been tested in accordance with the technical requirements of UN-ECE Regulation 68.

# 3.5 Warranty for the vehicle and battery or fuel cell and electric drive train

- The vehicle (excluding the battery or fuel cell and electric drive train <sup>2</sup>) must be covered by a warranty for a minimum period of 3 years or 60,000 miles (96,500km), whichever comes sooner. The warranty must be in line with the directive providing guidance on certain aspects of the sale of consumer goods and associated guarantees in EU Directive 1999/44/EC.
- The battery or fuel cell and electric drive train must be covered by a warranty for a minimum period of 3 years, or 60,000 miles (96,500km), whichever comes sooner. The warranty must be in line with the directive providing guidance on certain aspects of the sale of consumer goods and associated guarantees in EU Directive 1999/44/EC.

In addition, the customer must be offered the option to extend the warranty by a minimum of 2 years. Applicants may choose to attach an additional cost to this warranty extension.

• Where the battery or fuel cell and broader electric drive train is leased to the customer, the leasing agreement must offer a level of support to the customer that is at least equivalent to the above mentioned warranty.

## Accepted evidence

 A copy of the warranty document showing that the above requirements have been met. If the warranty document is not available at the point of application, the applicant may submit written confirmation that the vehicle will be offered with a warranty that meets the above specification. However, before any vehicles can be sold and supported under the scheme we will require a copy of the warranty document.

Further information on meeting the warranty criterion are included at Annex C.

# 3.6 Battery or fuel cell degradation

The applicant must demonstrate that the battery or fuel cell used to drive the vehicle's propulsion system has an acceptably low rate of degradation. As a guide to applicants, pending the evidence presented in each case, an acceptable level of degradation is defined as:

- <u>For battery electric vehicles<sup>3</sup></u>, the battery must maintain at least 80% of its initial or rated charge capacity for the initial 3 years, or 70% of initial or rated charge capacity for the initial 5 years.
- <u>For fuel cell vehicles</u>, the fuel stack must maintain at least 90% of its rated voltage output for the initial 5 years. Given the newness of this technology, we are prepared to work with manufacturers who supply alternative evidence which provides what the panel judges to be a reasonable level of reassurance to the consumer.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> 'Drive train' is used to mean the parts that send power from the engine to the wheels. These include the clutch, transmission (gear box), drive shafts, U-joints and differential.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Including pure electric, plug in hybrid and range extender vehicles.

# 3.7 Crash safety

Vehicles must demonstrate that they meet the minimum safety requirements of the PICG scheme.

There are two routes to demonstrate compliance:

- Homologation to category M1 through EC Whole Vehicle Type Approval (EC WVTA; not including EC Small Series or National Approval routes); OR,
- Evidence that the car demonstrates a comparable or higher level of safety as judged by international standards. This may be evidence of crash testing for internationally recognised consumer information programmes, such as Euro NCAP, but must cover front impact, side impact and pedestrian protection.

## Accepted evidence

 A copy of the EC Whole Vehicle Type Approval certificate for the model of the car that is being presented to the panel.

OR,

 Evidence submitted by the applicant to show the car has been crash tested to international standards and/or consumer information programmes where the outcome shows broadly comparable or higher levels of performance to those specified in EC Whole Vehicle Type Approval crash tests. This must include frontal, side and pedestrian impact. The evidence provided may be assessed by independent technical experts.

In making the decision on what are comparable safety outcomes, the assessment panel reserves the right to require the applicant to complete crash testing if it is considered that the data provided is insufficient, or the results inconclusive.

## Multi-stage builds

For the purposes of the PICG any multi-stage built M1 vehicle will need to have been approved as a completed vehicle (e.g. comprising both chassis and bodywork): the accepted evidence listed above must cover the vehicle in its finished condition. An approval for a vehicle that has not been completed will not be accepted. This is to ensure vehicles driven off the forecourt when bought by the public meet the PICG criteria.

Manufacturers will need to consult the Vehicle Certification Agency (VCA) to obtain completed vehicle approval

- <u>http://www.dft.gov.uk/vca/vehicletype/type-approval-for-go.asp</u>
- <u>http://www.dft.gov.uk/vca//vehicletype/ecwvta-framework-directive.asp</u>

To make an enquiry about applying for Type Approval, e-mail enquiries@vca.gov.uk or call +44 (0)117 952 4164

# 3.8 Electrical safety

As a minimum, for a vehicle to be eligible for the scheme, it needs to show approval to UN ECE Regulation 100.01, which became mandatory for new vehicles in December 2012.

The 02 series of amendments to UN ECE Regulation 100 entered into force in July 2013 and will become mandatory for new vehicle types from 15th July 2016. This amendment adds requirements for the safety of the Rechargeable Energy Storage System (REESS), namely vibration, mechanical shock, fire resistance tests, short circuit protection. If the applicant is not able to provide a copy of the approval certificate to UN-ECE Regulation 100.02, evidence should be provided to show that the technical requirements of the 02 series of amendments have been met.

The applicant must also provide evidence of action taken to mitigate electrical safety risks not covered by Regulation 100. In particular, this must include a statement of what actions they will take to inform consumers about the safest way to charge and use their vehicle. Issues to cover should include:

- A. What voltage and amperage requirement will be needed to safely charge the EV or PHEV in domestic properties;
- B. What electrical safety advice will be provided to the purchaser;
- C. Whether charging the EV/PHEV in domestic properties will require the installation of additional safety equipment or separate circuits. In cases where additional safety equipment or separate electrical circuits are required, please tell us of the process by which you will ensure that the necessary equipment has been provided and/or circuits safely installed by the time of delivery of the car to the consumer;
- D. How the actions of the applicant will ensure compliance with the Low Voltage Directive 2006/95/EC.

The applicant could also demonstrate their commitment to consumer safety by submitting written confirmation that they will provide documentation with the vehicle that explains the safe operation and charging of the vehicle.

The following are examples of best practice for providing evidence:

- A one-page leaflet for new customers outlining electrical safety issues.
- A comprehensive instruction manual with detailed instructions for owners on how to safely recharge and maintain their vehicle and risks to avoid.
- Requirement or recommendation that the consumer has a survey performed on his or her home wiring.
- Advice on how to install a dedicated home charging unit, with details of potential companies who can carry out the work.
- Evidence of dealership training to ensure dealers can correctly advise on electrical safety during the sales process.
- If relevant, indication of training so that technicians and mechanics can safely service the vehicle.

Where it is felt that the applicant has taken insufficient measures, the panel reserves the right to reject the application and/or stipulate that the applicant undertake certain additional measures before the vehicle can be deemed eligible.

# 3.8 Electrical Safety (Continued)

# Accepted Evidence:

• A copy of the type approval certificate to UN-ECE Reg 100.02;

OR,

• A copy of the type approval certificate to UN-ECE Reg 100.01, and evidence that technical requirements for 02 series of amendments are met.

AND,

• Descriptions of the action taken, and planned, by the applicant to identify and mitigate electrical safety risks not covered by Regulation 100. At a minimum the manufacturer should demonstrate points a)-d) above in whatever form is judged appropriate

AND,

• Blueprints / information to emergency services on how to correctly deal with an incident involving the relevant vehicle (i.e. where battery is located / what wires to cut).

# 3.9 [FCEV ONLY] Hydrogen safety

The vehicle must show approval to Regulation (EC) 79/2009 as amended by Regulation (EC) No. 406/2010.

The applicant must also demonstrate their commitment to consumer safety by submitting copies of the documentation which will be provided to the consumer to explain the safe operation and refuelling of the vehicle.

The following are examples of best practice for providing evidence:

- A one-page leaflet for new customers outlining hydrogen safety issues;
- A comprehensive instruction manual with detailed instructions for owners on how to safely recharge and maintain their vehicle and risks to avoid;
- Information for firefighters and other first responders on hydrogen safety.

## Accepted evidence:

- A copy of the type approval certificate to Regulation (EC) 79/2009 AND,
- Descriptions of the action taken, and planned, by the applicant to identify and mitigate hydrogen safety risks not covered by Regulation (EC) 79/2009. AND,
- Blueprints / information to emergency services on how to correctly deal with an incident involving the relevant vehicle (ie where fuel cell is and how it should be treated).

# Annex A: PICG Application cover sheet

A.1 This form acts as a cover sheet and must be accompanied with supporting evidence in English. Accepted Evidence is outlined in guidance notes. If some evidence is not applicable please state why the vehicle benefits from an exemption.

1	Applicant Contact Details	
1.1	Plug-in car grant application reference number	
1.2	Name of company applying	
1.3	Registered company no.	
1.4	Registered company address	
1.5	Point of contact for application process (Name, email and phone number/s)	
1.6	Finance Director's name	

2 Vehicle Details		
2.1	Vehicle model	
2.2	Model variants seeking approval	
2.3a	Vehicle Technology	
2.3b	Battery chemistry and capacity (kWh)	
2.4	If applicable, internal combustion engine nominal capacity (cm <sup>3</sup> )	
2.5	If applicable, hydrogen fuel cell power (kW) and storage capacity (kg)	
2.6	Maximum speed (mph and km/h)	
2.7	Number of seating positions	
2.8	Vehicle segment	
2.9	Price (before grant is deducted)	
2.10	Charging plug type (if applicable)	

# 3 Meeting the eligibility criteria

Note: The evidence listed in this form is intended as a summary checklist only. The applicant must refer to the full guidelines to ensure that the evidence submitted fully complies with the scheme requirements.

3.1 Vehicle type	Evidence provided:
The vehicle must be within the M1	
category, as defined under EU Directive (EC) 2007/46/EC.	<ul> <li>EC Whole Vehicle Type Approval certificate;</li> <li>OR;</li> <li>EC Small Series Type Approval certificate;</li> <li>OR;</li> <li>UK National Small Series Type Approval certificate;</li> <li>OR;</li> <li>UK Individual Vehicle Approval (IVA) certificate.</li> </ul>
Vehicle type approval number:	
3.2 CO <sub>2</sub> emissions (g/km)	Value: g/km
	<ul> <li>Please provide:</li> <li>UN-ECE Regulation 101 communication form,</li> <li>OR,</li> <li>Regulation (EC) No 715/2007 approval certificate</li> </ul>

3 3 Vehicle all-electric range	Value miles
5.5 Venicle an-electric range	
	Evidence provided:
	□ UN-ECE Regulation 101
	communication form;
	OR,
	<ul> <li>The Type Approval Certificate (including Addendum) approving the vehicle to Regulation (EC) No 715/2007.</li> </ul>
3.4 Vehicle maximum speed	Value: mph
	Evidence provided <sup>.</sup>
	$\Box$ A copy of the publicly available
	specification of the vehicle
	OR,
	□ A signed statement of vehicle maximum
	stating that this value will be
	made publicly available;
	OR,
	UN-ECE Regulation 68 approval
	certificate;
	OR,
	□ A test report from an appropriately
	equipped and qualified technical centre.
3.5 Vehicle warranty	Vehicle warranty period
The vehicle (excluding the battery or fuel	years
cell and electric drive train <sup>4</sup> ) must be	
covered by a warranty for a minimum	Evidence provided:
period of 3 years or 60,000 miles	☐ A copy of the warranty document
	UR,
	be offered with a warranty that meets
	the specification. Note: Before any
	vehicles can be sold and supported
	of the warranty document

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> 'Drive train' is used to mean the parts that send power from the engine to the wheels. These include the clutch, transmission (gear box), drive shafts, U-joints and differential.

<b>3.5 Battery or fuel cell warranty</b>	Battery or fuel cell warranty period
drivetrain must be covered by a warranty	
for a minimum period of 3 years, or 60,000	Evidence provided:
miles (96,500km), whichever comes	□ A copy of the warranty document
sooner. The warranty must be in line with	OR,
aspects of the sale of consumer goods	□ Written confirmation that the vehicle will
and associated guarantees in EU Directive	be offered with a warranty that meets
1999/44/EC.	the specification. Note: Before any
In addition, the customer must be offered	under the scheme we will require a conv
the option to extend the warranty by a	of the warranty document
choose to attach an additional cost to this	
warranty extension.	
3.6 Battery or fuel cell degradation	A copy of the warranty document
	explicitly stating acceptable levels of
<u>Either a warranty or evidence to</u> reasonable	
level of degradation is defined as	□ Data from tests undertaken on an
For battery electric vehicles <sup>5</sup> , the battery	appropriate sample of batteries or fuel
must maintain at least 80% of its initial or	cells that have been in service for a
rated charge capacity for the initial 3 years,	period of three or more years;
or 70% of initial capacity for the initial 5	$\Box$ A written assurance from the applicant
years.	that their battery will offer a reasonable
For fuel cell vehicles, the fuel stack must	performance, with evidence provided in
maintain at least 90% of its rated voltage	line with the guidance in Annex D.
output for the initial 5 years.	
3.7 Crash safety	□ A copy of the EC Whole Vehicle Type
	Approval certificate for the model of the
	car that is being presented to the panel.
	OR,
	show the car has been crash tested to
	comparable or higher levels of
	performance to those specified in EC
	Whole Vehicle Type Approval crash
	tests. See guidance for further details.

 $<sup>^{\</sup>rm 5}$  Including pure electric, plug in hybrid and range extender vehicles.

3.8 Electrical safety	□ A copy of the type approval certificate to
	OR.
	<ul> <li>A copy of the type approval certificate to UN-ECE Reg 100.01 and evidence that technical requirements for 02 series of amendments are met.</li> </ul>
	AND,
	Descriptions of the action taken, and planned, by the applicant to identify and mitigate electrical safety risks not covered by Regulation 100.
	AND,
	Information to emergency services on how to correctly deal with an incident involving the relevant vehicle.
3.9 [FCEV ONLY] Hydrogen safety	<ul> <li>A copy of the type approval certificate to Regulation (EC) 79/2009</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Descriptions of the action taken, and planned, by the applicant to identify and mitigate hydrogen safety risks not covered by Regulation (EC) 79/2009.</li> <li>AND,</li> </ul>
	Information to emergency services on how to correctly deal with an incident involving the relevant vehicle.

Signed	(Name)
(Position)	Date

On behalf of the applicant, I am authorised to, and agree to follow, the processes and requirements of the plug-in car grant guidance notes.

# Annex B: Additional Information

B.1 This information is not considered by the assessment panel.

A	Site of vehicle production	
В	Anticipated UK supply volume	
	2021/22	
	2022/23	
	2023/24	
	2024/25	
С	UK presence – facilities and support	
D	UK opportunities	
E	Associated companies	
F	Future applications	

- B.2 BEIS and DfT will monitor the uptake of the PICG and PIVG to ensure best value is delivered for the ultra-low emission vehicle market and that consumer purchases will be properly supported.
- B.3 To monitor the growing market for ultra-low emission vehicles and the impact on UK businesses, we'd like to collect the following: site of vehicle production; anticipated UK supply volume by year; UK presence; UK opportunities; associated companies; and future applications on the first section of the Application Form. This information does not form part of the eligibility assessment. Before applications are reviewed the first section is detached.
  - Site of vehicle production where will the vehicle be produced.
  - Anticipated UK supply volume by year an estimate of how many vehicles are to be offered for sale in the UK in each financial year to 2021/22.
  - UK presence facilities and support how many facilities does the company have in the UK? How is the company planning to provide vehicle servicing, maintenance and engineering support for this vehicle?
  - UK opportunities what opportunities do you see the UK presenting to your business in terms of vehicle design, development, manufacture and demonstration?
  - Associated companies do you envisage working in partnership with other companies, e.g. in the supply chain or charging infrastructure, and if so, who are your main partners?
  - Future applications- do you anticipate further models being submitted to the Grant scheme? If so, when and in what volume is it likely they will be supplied to the market?

# Annex C: Guidelines to meet the plug-in car grant warranty criterion

- C.1. In order to be considered eligible for a grant under the PICG scheme, manufacturers, their agents, or importers of vehicles to benefit from the grant
- C.2. ("Applicants") are required to offer a warranty to purchasers of such vehicles and their successors in title ("Consumers"), that conforms with the requirements of Directive 1999/44/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 25 May 1999 on certain aspects of the sale of consumer goods and associated guarantees.
- C.3. DfT does not intend dictating the precise terms of the warranty to be provided by Applicants to Consumers. It is anticipated that the full extent of the warranty provided by Applicants will to a significant extent be determined by market forces and it is anticipated that it will prove to be a key differential selling point for vehicles of this type. DfT does, however, reserve the right to disqualify an Applicant's application for a grant under the scheme should it regard the terms of the warranty being offered by the Applicant as failing to meet the minimum criteria required by DfT. In addition, the Applicant must be able to satisfy DfT that it is able to fulfil the terms of the warranty being offered by it.
- C.4. With respect to the warranty requirement, in order to qualify for a grant under the PICG, the Applicant must as a minimum requirement provide the following to the Consumer:
- C.5. A warranty of at least three years or 60,000 miles (96,500 km) from the date of transfer of ownership to the Consumer, regarding the vehicle excluding the battery or fuel cell and electric drive train. For avoidance of doubt, the warranty should cover all equipment supplied with the vehicle, including the charge cable. External equipment installed in the customers' home, for example charging units, does not need to be covered by the vehicle warranty.
- C.6. A warranty of at least three years or 60,000 miles (96,500 km) from the date of transfer of ownership to the Consumer regarding the battery or fuel cell and electric drive train of the vehicle. In addition, the Applicant must offer to the Consumer the option of extending the warrantee regarding the battery and electric drive train of the vehicle by a further two years. The Applicant may choose to attach an additional cost to this warranty extension.
  - i. The Applicant must guarantee to the Consumer that the battery or fuel cell and electric drive train of the vehicle will retain a reasonable degree of performance for the period of the warranty.
  - ii. In the event of a fault or deficiency in performance being found in the battery or full cell or electric drive train of the vehicle, the Applicant must undertake to repair or replace defective parts free of charge. "Free of charge" in this context refers to the necessary costs incurred including, for the avoidance of doubt, the cost of postage, labour and materials.
  - iii. The Applicant may, however, limit its liability under the warranty or thereafter for any fault or deficiency in performance of the battery or fuel cell or electric drive train of the vehicle to the extent that such fault or deficiency in performance arises from normal wear and tear or the negligence, improper use, faulty storage, insufficient care or modification of the vehicle by the Consumer, its servants or agents.
  - iv. The warranty must be transferable to the Consumer's successors in title to the vehicle.

# Annex D: Guidelines for preparing battery degradation evidence

# D.1. To note: similar guidance will be supplied on preparing fuel cell degradation evidence as more fuel cell vehicles come to market.

- D.2. To summarise the battery degradation requirement explained more fully on in requirement 3.6, this requirement can be met in one of three ways, either through;
  - A. Warranty terms that explicitly cover the battery against unreasonable degradation<sup>6</sup> (see requirement 3.6 for full details);
  - B. Actual data from tests undertaken on an appropriate sample of batteries that have been in service for a period of three or more years, showing that they have not degraded unreasonably;
  - C. Written assurance from the applicant that the battery will offer a reasonable performance, comparable with or better than the rates of degradation specified in requirement 3.6. The applicant must provide evidence to support their assurance.
- D.3. In cases where the applicant is seeking approval via route C, the evidence provided may be in the form of illustrative evidence of the degradation rate under certain conditions, such as under an accelerated testing regime, together with a supporting explanation of the way in which this evidence demonstrates long term maintenance of the performance.
- D.4. The panel may consider the following elements as indicators of quality sufficient to offer reasonable performance during normal use. In this context, they will consider what is appropriate to the vehicle and range/performance stated by the manufacturer. The applicant may wish to identify the possible failure modes and mitigating actions that have been taken.
- D.5. As a guide to the level of detail expected, we would not expect the evidence submitted to require more than ten pages. Annexes can be provided if desired. The assessment panel and/or supporting Independent Technical Experts may request additional information to inform assessment of the application.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> For battery electric vehicles we define a reasonable level of degradation as maintaining at least 80% of its initial or rated charge capacity for the initial 3 years, or 70% of initial capacity for the initial 5 years.

Described below are the types of indicators or factors which the panel and independent technical experts will take into account when assessing this evidence.

# 1 Battery Cell

Data at the cell level can include the published test data of cell manufacturers.

## TRANSPORTATION

Conforms to UN transport standard ST/SG/AC.10/27

## **CYCLING TESTS**

- Provide appropriate evidence, to represent the final application of:
  - C-Rating
  - Depth of discharge
  - Influence of temperature on characteristics

## SELF DISCHARGE RATES

Values and method of establishing them

## IMPEDANCE

• Measurement method and evolution with both elapsed time and use

## CAPACITY

Measurement method and evolution with both elapsed time and use

## 2 Battery Pack

Evidence needs to clearly show how the cells have been combined to produce performance in a battery pack that meets the stated specification.

## **MECHANICAL INTEGRITY**

- Resistance to stresses caused by dimensional changes of cells in operation
- What vibration, strength and damage testing has been performed?
- Strategy for preventing and containing effects of cell failures.

## THERMAL INTEGRITY

• Please provide a summary of your thermal management strategy and how it is achieved, such as for example cell-to-cell temperature variation and overall pack temperature control.

## **CYCLING TESTS**

- Are the tests appropriate to the claimed usage of the vehicle?
- Are the cycling profiles, ratings and temperatures of the tests appropriate?

## ENVIRONMANTAL RESISTANCE

- What is the IP rating of the pack?
- Resistance to dusts and liquid and gaseous contaminants
- Resistance to extremes of temperature.

## **BATTERY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM**

 How does the BMS ensure that the individual cells are not required to operate outside of its specification?

# 3 Vehicle

The integration of a battery pack into the operational context of a vehicle can impact on the battery degradation rate. How has this been considered by the manufacturer? In addition to the points below, the issues considered at the pack level should also be addressed at the vehicle level.

## **BATTERY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM**

• How does the BMS ensure that the battery pack is not required to operate outside of its specification?

#### THERMAL INTEGRITY

• What cooling strategy has been put in place to support the operation of the battery in the UK environment?

## **ONBOARD DIAGNOSTICS**

• What error and information messages will be provided to the driver on the status of the battery? What error messages will be recorded for maintenance?

## DIRT, DUST, WATER INGRESS AND MECHANICAL STRESS

• What measures have been taken to assess and control these factors?